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CLARIFICATION NO. 1 

INTERNAL GSA REFERENCE: WF 230010 

Related to GSA/Grant/02/17 – "Development of MEOSAR Beacons" 

Question no. 1: The additional requirements ask for reducing false alert rate on PLBs. The CS 

statistics show that PLBs have a significantly lower false alert rate than EPIRBs and PLBs. Why are 

PLBs singled out? 

Answer: In vessels and aircraft there are some communication mechanisms in place to verify if 

an alarm is false or not, however this mechanism does not exist for a single person in distress 

using a PLB (e.g. mobile network is not available) and therefore are requested within the scope 

of the project. 

 

Question no. 2: What mechanisms exist for a company to get in touch with other participants in 

order to join a consortium to bid for a particular proposal or tender? 

Answer: GSA does not have this mechanism in place. However please feel free to consult the GSA 

project portfolio which lists the companies involved in the past projects 

https://www.gsa.europa.eu/gnss-h2020-projects, as well as the GNSS downstream industry 

directory at the GSA website: https://www.gsa.europa.eu/gnss-applications/gnss-industry-and-

value-chain/gnss-industry-directory. Information and contacts for Beacon Manufacturers and 

Accepted Test Facilities is published by COSPAS-SARSAT.    

 

Question no. 3: Can you brief which is the policy for FIPR and BIPR? 

Answer: The rules applying to foreground (FIPR) and background intellectual property rights 

(BIPR) are laid down in the draft grant agreement for proposal GSA/GRANT/02/2017 (both 'mono' 

and 'multi'-versions) - therein articles I.9 and II.9.  Please carefully read the grant agreements and 

their provisions. 

 

Question no. 4: In case we add a functionality to a beacon type (i.e. into a PLB or EPIRB), would 

that be acceptable knowing that the added function is related to live protection but not linked 

with COSPAS-SARSAT? 

Answer: Innovative solutions and functionalities are welcome while respecting C/S minimum 

specifications.  
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Question no. 5: Which is the expected TRL in the proposal? How is the proposed TRL evaluated? 

Answer: A specific TRL is not mentioned in the present call for proposals. However, the call states 

that one of the objectives is to obtain the type approval of the beacon. 

 

Question no. 6: The max budget of 1 M€ per project, does it correspond to the total budget or to 

the allowable fund possibly released. GSA funding could be 1M€ and the total project cost 1.42 

M€ or the funding by GSA could be max 700 k€ per project? 

Answer: The indicative EU funding for one proposal is up to 1 million EUR. The indicative amount 

represents the funding received after applying of the 70% funding rate to the estimated eligible 

costs, meaning that the GSA could award a grant of up to 1 million EUR to a proposal with 

estimated eligible costs of approximately 1.43 million EUR or higher. In such a case, the 

applicant(s) will be asked either to increase his co-financing, propose other co-financing means 

or to decrease the total costs without altering the substance of the proposal. Grants will not be 

awarded for more than the amount requested. For more information please see the Chapter 4 of 

the Call for proposal GSA/GRANT/02/2017. 

 

Question no. 7: The certification process at Cospas Sarsat is taking a lot of time. The planning of 

2-year maximum is considering this delay? Usually, an average time of certification by C/S 

secretariat takes 6 months minimum for basic beacons. 

Answer: One of the objectives of the call is to obtain the type approval of the beacon. This process 

with its associated timelines have to be taken into account in the work plan.  The type-approval 

certificate is one of the mandatory deliverables. 
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